
 
LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 
AGENDA 

Lemoore Council Chamber 
429 ‘C’ Street 

 
July 8, 2024 

5:30 p.m. 
 

 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT – Public comment will be in accordance with the attached policy. This time is 
reserved for members of the audience to address the Planning Commission on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission. It is recommended that speakers limit 
their comments to three (3) minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on 
items on the Agenda. The Commission is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are 
not on the Agenda. Prior to addressing the Commission, any handouts for Commission will be provided to the 
Commission Secretary for distribution to the Commission and appropriate staff. The public will have an opportunity 
to comment on items on the agenda once the item has been called and the Chair opens the item to the public.  

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Regular Meeting, May 13, 2024 

5. REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – A request by Lennar Homes of California, Inc. to 
extend approval of Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2017-01, Reverie Tract 920 and 
accompanying Planning entitlements for One Year (APN: 021-570-001 and 021-560-001). An 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration was adopted pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) on June 20, 2017, in conjunction with the annexation of 
the property. 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – Public Comment and Consideration for adoption of Resolution No. 2024-
04, approving Conditional Use Permit No. 2024-01: a request by Beal Properties (Day and 
Night Market) to allow the on-site sale of alcoholic beverages (Type 21 Alcohol and Beverage 
Control (ABC) license) for off-site consumption at 10 N. Belle Haven Drive in the City of 
Lemoore (APN 023-480-045); and determining that the project is Categorically Exempt from 
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Class 1 (Existing 
Facilities) Section 15301. 

 
7. DIRECTORS REPORT  

8. COMMISSION REPORTS / REQUESTS  

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
Upcoming Meetings 
Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission, August 12, 2024 
 
 



Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the Council Chamber, 429 C 
Street and the Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive. Written communications from the public for the 
agenda must be received by the City Clerk’s Office no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date. The City of 
Lemoore complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990). The Council Chamber is accessible to the 
physically disabled. Should you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6744, at least 4 business days prior to 
the meeting. 
 
 

 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

 
I, Kristie Baley, Planning Commission Secretary for the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that I 
posted the above Planning Commission Agenda for the Regular Meeting of Monday, July 8, 2024, 
at Council Chamber, 429 C Street and Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive, 
Lemoore CA on July 3, 2024. 
 
  //s//  
 Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
July 8, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m.  

The Planning Commission will hold its public meetings in person, with a virtual option for public 
participation based on availability. The City of Lemoore utilizes Zoom teleconferencing 
technology for virtual public participation; however, the City makes no representation or warranty 
of any kind, regarding the adequacy, reliability, or availability of the use of this platform in this 
manner. Participation by members of the public through this means is at their own risk.  (Zoom 
teleconferencing/attendance may not be available at all meetings.)  
The meeting may be viewed through the following Zoom Meeting: 
• Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
• https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86135375171?pwd=kSl4XutiBaf2agnldzC4XS5R4s0e2h.1 

Meeting ID: 861 3537 5171   
• Passcode: 230407 
• Phone: +1 669 900 6833 
 
If you wish to make a general public comment or public comment on a particular item on the 
agenda, participants may do so via Zoom during the meeting or by submitting public 
comments by e-mail to: planning@lemoore.com.  In the subject line of the e-mail, please state 
your name and the item you are commenting on.  If you wish to submit a public comment on more 
than one agenda item, please send a separate e-email for each item you are commenting on.  Please 
be aware that written public comments, including your name, may become public information. 
Additional requirements for submitting public comments by e-mail are provided below.  
 
General Public Comments & Comments on City Council Business Items 
For general public comments and comments regarding specific Planning Commission Business 
Items, public comments can be made via Zoom during the meeting or all public comments must 
be received by e-mail no later than 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments received by this 
time will be read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such 
comments may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion 
of your comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions.  
If a general public comment or comment on a business item is received after 5:00 p.m., efforts will 
be made to read your comment into the record.  However, staff cannot guarantee that written 
comments received after 5:00 p.m. will be read.  All written comments that are not read into the 
record will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comments are received prior 
to the end of the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Public Hearings 
For public comment on a public hearing, all public comments must be received by the close of the 
public hearing period.  All comments received by the close of the public hearing period will be 
read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such comments 
may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion of your 
comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions.  If a 
comment on a public hearing item is received after the close of the public hearing, such comment 
will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comment is received prior to the end 
of the meeting. 
*PLEASE BE AWARE THAT ANY PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED THAT DO NOT SPECIFY A PARTICULAR 
AGENDA ITEM WILL BE READ ALOUD DURING THE GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT PORTION OF THE AGENDA. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86135375171?pwd=kSl4XutiBaf2agnldzC4XS5R4s0e2h.1


   
 

 1 

Minutes of the 
LEMOORE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting  
May 13, 2024 

 
ITEM NO. 1 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
ITEM NO. 2 Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM. 

Chair: Mitchell Couch  
Vice-Chair Ray Etchegoin 
Commissioners: Bob Clement, Greg Franklin, Ron Meade 
Absent: Joseph Brewer, Kathleen Cain  

 
City Staff and Contract Employees Present: City Planner Steve Brandt (QK), City Attorney 
Cristal Pizano (Lozano Smith), Senior Planner Kira Noguera (QK), Commission Secretary 
Kristie Baley 
 
 
ITEM NO. 3 Public Comment 
 
There was no comment. 
 
 
ITEM NO. 4   Approval - Minutes – Regular Meeting, May 13, 2024 
 
Motion by Commissioner Etchegoin, seconded by Commissioner Clement, to approve the 
Minutes of the Planning Commission Regular Meeting of April 8, 2024. 

 
Ayes: Etchegoin, Clement, Franklin, Meade, Couch  
Absent:  Brewer, Cain 
 
 
ITEM NO. 5   REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Consideration to approve and adopt 
Resolution No. 2024-02 – a request by Jeff Roberts (agent) to extend approval of Tentative 
Subdivision Map Tract 932 and accompanying Planning entitlements for one year. The project 
site is located on the east side of 18th Avenue (Lemoore Avenue) and north of Glendale 
Avenue (APN: 021-030-057).  
 
Motion by Commissioner Franklin, seconded by Commissioner Etchegoin, to adopt Resolution 
2024-02, approving the extension of the Tract 932 Tentative Subdivision Map and associated 
entitlements for one year. 

Ayes: Franklin, Etchegoin, Clement, Meade, Couch 
Absent:  Brewer, Cain 
 
 



   
 

 2 

ITEM NO. 6  PUBLIC HEARING – REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – to accept public 
comment and consideration to recommend to the City Council adopt of Resolution No. 2024-03 
and approve Zoning Text Amendment No. 2024-01: amending Sections 9-5B-5 “Fences and 
Walls”, 9-5E-5 “Design and Development Standards for Off Street Parking Areas”, 9-5D1-4 “Tree 
Preservation”, 9-4B-2 “Allowed Uses and Required Entitlements for Base Zoning Districts”, 9-5F-5 
“Standards for Permanent On Site Signs”, and Table 9-3-2 “Zoning Districts,” and adding Sections 
9-4D-21 “Tattoo Parlors” and 9-4D-22 “Personal Storage Facilities” in the City of Lemoore Zoning 
Ordinance.  

City Planner Brandt and Senior Planner Noguera from QK presented the text amendments.  
 
Chair Couch opened the public hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 
There was no comment. 
 
Chair Couch closed the public hearing at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Etchegoin, seconded by Commissioner Meade, to approve Resolution 
2024-03 recommending approval of Zoning Text Amendment No. 2024-01 and amending 
Sections 9-5B-5, to include changes listed below. 

1. Require drive approach upon installation of second driveway. 

2. Tattoo business entrance to remain unlocked during business hours and allow window 
signage for tattoo business to cover 25% of total window area as is allowed for other 
businesses.  

Ayes: Etchegoin, Meade, Franklin, Clement, Couch 
Absent:  Brewer, Cain 
 
ITEM NO. 7   Directors Report 
 
Brandt and Baley presented the following information. 
 
Staff are reviewing a site plan for a senior housing project to be located near Oleander Avenue 
and Bush Street. 
 
Brandt thanked Kira for assisting with the text amendments. 
 
Staff are reviewing an application for signage received for the Maverik’s fuel station to be 
located at 19th and Iona Avenues.  Approval of the monument and highway sign is dependent 
on approval of the text changes recommended to Planning Commission tonight. 
 
Grullense in Hanford is expanding and is in the process of opening two locations in Lemoore.  
Tenant improvements for a restaurant at 850 E D Street and a market/butcher shop at 
1204,1208,and 1216 N. Lemoore Avenue (Gateway Plaza) are in process. The restaurant is 
expected to open very soon.   
 
A site plan for a commercial development to include restaurant and retail at Bush Street and 
Acacia Drive (Phase II of the 19th and Bush project) was approved and the developer has 



   
 

 3 

submitted a tentative parcel map to be brought to the Planning Commission for approval within 
the next few months.  
 
The Smith Avenue and D Street apartment project is moving forward as planned.  The City will 
benefit from two offsite improvement grants (AHSC and IIG) that have been awarded.  
Construction and the improvements are expected to begin in late September. 
 
 
ITEM NO. 8   Commission Reports / Requests 
 
Commissioners Etchegoin and Couch thanked staff for their hard work.  
 
ITEM NO. 9   Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:34 P.M. 
 
 
Approved the 8th day of July 2024.       
   
  
APPROVED: 
 
                          
  Mitchell Couch, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 



“In God We Trust” 
 

                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

   
                  

To: Lemoore Planning Commission Item No. 5 

From: Steve Brandt, City Planner and  
Kristie Baley, Management Analyst 

 

Date: June 28, 2024 Meeting Date: July 8, 2024 

Subject: 

 
Request by Lennar Homes of California, Inc. to extend the approval of 
Reverie Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2017-01, Tract 920 and 
accompanying Planning entitlements for one year (APN: 021-570-001 
and 021-560-001) 
 

 
Proposed Motion: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2024-04. approving a one-year extension of time for the Reverie 
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2017-01, Tract 920 and accompanying Planning 
entitlements, in accordance with the findings and conditions in the resolution. 
 
Discussion: 
 
On June 26, 2024, Lennar Homes of California submitted a written request to extend the 
approval of the Tract No. 920 Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2017-01 for one 
year. This project was originally approved by Planning Commission Resolution No. 2017-
15 on August 14, 2017, which was originally set to expire on August 14, 2019. On 
February 28, 2018, the applicant submitted Phase 1 of the Tract No. 920 final map which 
extended the expiration date of the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to August 14, 
2020. The Planning Commission granted a one-year extension on June 22, 2020, which 
extended the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to August 14, 2021, to allow for the 
construction of Phase 2. The Planning Commission granted a second one-year extension 
on August 9, 2021, which extended the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to August 14, 
2022. The Planning Commission granted a third one-year extension on July 11, 2022, 
which extended the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to August 14, 2023. The Planning 
Commission granted a fourth one-year extension on August 14, 2023, which extended 



“In God We Trust” 
 

the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to August 14, 2024, to allow for recording of the 
final map. The filing of an application for an extension on June 26, 2024, stays the 
expiration for 60 days. If the one-year extension is approved, the Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map will be extended to August 14, 2025, and the applicant would have one 
request for discretionary extension left.  
 
The vesting tentative map consisted of 175 lots and a park/ponding basin to be developed 
in two phases. Site Plan Review No. 2017-01 and Planned Unit Development 2017-01 
were also approved. Phase 1 of the project was recorded with 87 lots on August 21, 2018, 
and development is complete.  Lennar Homes is close to beginning construction of Phase 
2; however, it will not be ready to do so by the August 14, 2024, expiration date. Therefore, 
the applicant has applied for a fifth one-year discretionary time extension.   
 
The Subdivision Map Act governs how cities are to process and administer the creation 
of new parcels and subdivisions. The Subdivision Map Act states that a final subdivision 
map must be filed with the City before the tentative map approval expires. The filing of a 
final map is usually the beginning of significant investment on the part of the developer. 
Tentative maps are initially approved for two years. Applicants may request up to six 
years of discretionary extensions by the City.  
 
Staff supports the one-year extension to give the developer more time to prepare for 
Phase 2. In accordance with Municipal Code Section 9-2A-9, extensions granted for the 
Tentative Tract Map shall be applied to all accompanying entitlements. The project would 
still adhere to the adopted conditions as adopted originally for the project. 
 
Attachments:   

1) Vicinity Map of Site Location 
2) Draft Resolution for Approval  
3) Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2017-01 
4) Original Approval Resolution No. 2017-15 
5) Resolution No. 2020-06 for One Year Time Extension 6/22/2020 
6) Resolution No. 2021-11 for One Year Time Extension 8/9/2021 
7) Resolution No. 2022-07 for One Year Time Extension 7/11/2022 
8) Resolution No. 2023-06 for One Year Time Extension 8/14/2023 

 



   

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING A ONE YEAR TIME EXTENSION TO VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION 

MAP NO. 2017-01 (TRACT 920) AND ACCOMPANYING PLANNING ENTITLEMENTS  
TO DIVIDE 40 ACRES INTO 175 SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS AND A PARK/PONDING BASIN  

LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF HANFORD-ARMONA ROAD  
AND LIBERTY DRIVE (18¾ AVENUE) IN THE CITY OF LEMOORE  

(APN 021-570-001 and 021-560-001) 
 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
July 8, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Commissioner ______________, 
seconded by Commissioner ______________, and carried that the following Resolution be 
adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Lennar Homes of California, Inc., requested a one-year extension for Vesting 
Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2017-01 (Tract 920), Site plan Review No. 2017-01, and Planned 
Unit Development No. 2017-01 to divide 40 acres into 175 single-family lots and a park/ponding 
basin located at the northeast corner of Hanford-Armona Road and 18¾ Avenue, in the City of 
Lemoore (APN: 021-570-001 and 021-560-001); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 2017-01 and accompanying Planning 
entitlements were previously approved by the City of Lemoore on August 14, 2017; and  
 

WHEREAS, the submittal of the Final Subdivision Map for Phase 1 extended the 
expiration date of the Vesting Tentative Map to August 14, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map was previously extended one year per 

the City of Lemoore Municipal Code Section 8-7F-10 to August 14, 2021; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map was previously extended one year per 

the City of Lemoore Municipal Code Section 8-7F-10 to August 14, 2022; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map was previously extended one year per 
the City of Lemoore Municipal Code Section 8-7F-10 to August 14, 2023; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map was previously extended one year per 

the City of Lemoore Municipal Code Section 8-7F-10 to August 14, 2024; and  
 

WHEREAS, the request for extension automatically extends the Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map for 60-days to allow for review per the Municipal Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the applicant has demonstrated reasonable efforts to pursue the project and 

the need for an extension of the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that granting an extension will 

not create a negative impact to the public health, safety, or welfare.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Lemoore hereby finds that the potential environmental effects of the Project were adequately 
analyzed by the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration that was adopted pursuant to the 



   

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) on June 20, 2017, in conjunction with the annexation 
of the property. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore 

hereby grants a one-year extension to Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2017-01 (Tract 
920), Site plan Review No. 2017-01, and Planned Unit Development No. 2017-01, which shall 
expire on August 14, 2025. This extension is granted subject to compliance with the conditions of 
the original approval contained in Resolution 2017-15. 

 
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore 
held on July 8, 2024, by the following votes: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINING: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 
 
 

       
Mitchell Couch, Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 
 





































                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 W Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

                  
To: Lemoore Planning Commission  Item No.  6 

From: 
Steve Brandt, City Planner and  
Kristie Baley, Management Analyst 
 

 

Date: June 28, 2024 Meeting Date: July 8, 2024 
Subject: Conditional Use Permit No. 2024-01: A request by Beal Properties (Day 

and Night Market) to allow the on-site sale of alcoholic beverages per 
Alcohol and Beverage Control (Type 21 ABC license) to include spirits for 
off-site consumption at 10 North Belle Haven Drive in the City of Lemoore 
(APN 023-480-045). 
 

Proposed Motion: 
 
Move to adopt Resolution No. 2024-05, approving Conditional Use Permit No. 2024-01 for 
public convenience and necessity in accordance with the findings and conditions in the 
Resolution.  
 
Project Proposal: 
 
The applicant is seeking to revise Conditional Use Permit No. 2021-03 which currently 
allows the on-site sale of packaged alcoholic beverages (Type 20 ABC license) such as 
beer and wine for off-site consumption.  The applicant is proposing the on-site sale of (Type 
21 ABC license) packaged alcoholic beverages such as beer, wine, and distilled spirits for 
off-site consumption.  This license type is issued to retail stores where minors are allowed 
on the premises.  The site is located at 10 North Belle Haven Drive, west of SR 41.  
 
The proposed sale of alcohol in a Regional Commercial zone requires a Conditional Use 
Permit per Table 9-4B-2 and a finding of public necessity or convenience per Section 9-2B-
17 of the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance. 

Applicant   Beal Properties, Trevor Beal owner 
Location   10 North Belle Haven Drive 
Existing Land Use Fuel station/convenience store with food service 



APN(s)   023-480-045  
Total Building Size 4,280 square feet  
Zoning   Regional Commercial 
General Plan   Regional Commercial 
 

Adjacent Land Use, Zone and General Plan Designation   
Direction  Current Use  Zone  General Plan  

North Leprino Foods Light Industrial Light Industrial 

South Vacant land Regional 
Commercial 

Regional 
Commercial 

East SR 41 Regional 
Transportation 

Regional 
Transportation 

West Vacant land Regional 
Commercial 

Regional 
Commercial 

 
Previous Relevant Actions: 
 
The Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 2021-13, approving CUP No. 2021-03 
for public convenience and necessity in accordance with the conditions and findings in the 
Resolution at its September 13, 2021, meeting. 
 
Zoning/General Plan: 
 
The site is planned and zoned Regional Commercial (RC). Per the Lemoore Municipal 
Code, the proposed on-site sale of alcohol for off-site consumption is a use that can be 
approved through a CUP in this zone. This project is being brought to the Planning 
Commission because the proposed on-site sale of alcohol requires a CUP. 
 
Operations: 

The on-site sale of alcoholic beverages for this type of development is considered an 
acceptable use as long as all activities and operations are in accordance with Alcoholic 
Beverage Control (ABC) conditions and ABC requirements for use.  Compliance with the 
requirements ABC places on the site is recommended as a condition of the approval of this 
CUP.  

Nearby Schools, Churches, and Parks: 

Zoning Ordinance Section 9-4D-2 states that establishments selling alcoholic beverages 
shall not be located within 500 feet of a park facility, school facility, or existing religious land 
use.  There are no park facilities, school facilities, or existing religious land uses within 500 
feet of the site 



 
 
Public Necessity or Convenience 
 
Section 9-2B-17 requires the Planning Commission to make a finding that the public 
convenience or necessity would be served by the granting of an alcohol license. The 
Planning Commission shall consider, among other things, the recommendations of the 
Chief of Police, the Planning Director, and other departments of the City. The purpose of 
this finding is to give the Planning Commission the opportunity to say whether or not the 
site is appropriate for sale of alcohol and whether or not there is already an 
overconcentration of alcohol sales in the neighborhood. 

 
The City Manager and all Directors have reviewed the request, and none voiced opposition 
to the request at this location. The City Manager/Community Development Director and 
Chief of Police recommend making the finding of public necessity or convenience. 
 
Environmental Assessment: 
 
The City has determined that the project is Categorically Exempt from the requirements of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Class 1 (Existing Facilities) Section 
15301. 
 
Recommended Approval Findings:  

A Conditional Use Permit shall be granted only when the designated approving authority 
determines that the proposed use or activity complies with all of the following findings.  City 
staff recommends that these findings be made based upon review of the project as 
described in this staff report, and with the recommended conditions of approval. These 
findings include a Finding of Public Convenience or Necessity per Municipal Code Section 
9-4D-2. 
 

1. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan, any applicable specific plans, 
and all applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.  The proposed use of the 
building is consistent with the General Plan; the proposed land uses are consistent 
with the Zoning Ordinance. 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will not, under 
the circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating 
characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or 
general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such use or to 
the general welfare of the City. The site is located near other compatible commercial 
uses.  

3. The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density, and intensity 
of the use and related structures being proposed.  The site is physically able to 
support the use. The applicant may be required by ABC to make physical changes 
to conform to their standards, if needed. 



4. It will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development regulations, or 
performance standards established for the zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposed use and related structures are compatible with other land uses, 
transportation patterns, and service facilities in the vicinity.  

5. There are no park facilities, school facilities, or existing religious land uses within 
500 feet of the site.  

6. The public convenience or necessity would be served by the granting of the CUP 
and ABC license. 

7. The project is Categorically Exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Class 1 (Existing Facilities) Section 15301. 

 
Recommended Conditions: 

Staff recommends the following conditions be applied to the approval of the Conditional 
Use Permit: 

 
1. The operation shall be conducted in accordance with this Conditional Use Permit. 

Any deviations from the approvals shall first require approval of an amendment to 
this Conditional Use Permit. 

2. The establishment shall obtain and maintain a valid Type 21 license from Alcoholic 
Beverage Control (ABC). A change to a license type that is deemed more intensive 
than a Type 21 license shall require an amendment to this Conditional Use Permit. 

3. The establishment shall comply with all federal and state laws regarding the sale of 
alcohol. 

4. Business hours and the sale of alcohol shall comply with ABC regulations. 

5. All subsequent uses must meet the requirements found in Section 9-5B-2 and 9-5B-
4 of the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance related to noise, odor, and vibration, 
lighting and maintenance. 

6. The time limits and potential extensions and expiration of this Conditional Use 
Permit are established per Section 9-2A-9 of the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Attachments: 
 

Location Map 
Draft Resolution 
Resolution No. 2021-13 approving CUP No. 2021-03 dated September 13, 2021 
Resolution No. 2021-06 with Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit Conditions of Approval 
dated April 12, 2021 
 



Location Map 
CUP No. 2024-01 

 

 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 2024-01 and FINDING OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE 
OR NECESSITY TO ALLOW THE ON-SITE SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR OFF-SITE 

CONSUMPTION (TYPE 21 ABC LICENSE) AT 10 NORTH BELLE HAVEN DRIVE 
IN THE CITY OF LEMOORE  

 
 
At a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
July 8, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Commissioner ______________, 
seconded by Commissioner ______________, and carried that the following Resolution be 
adopted:  
 

WHEREAS, Beal Properties has requested a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow the 
sale of alcoholic beverages (Type 21 ABC license) for off-site consumption at 10 North Belle 
Haven Drive in the City of Lemoore (APN 023-480-045); and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed site has conditional approval for gas station and convenience 
store (CUP No. 2021-01); and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed site has conditional approval for sale of alcoholic beverages 

(Type 20 ABC license) for off-site consumption (CUP No. 2021-03); and 
 

WHEREAS, the zoning on the parcel is Regional Commercial; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is Categorically Exempt from the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Class 1 (Existing Facilities) Section 15301; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Lemoore Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing at its 
July 8, 2024, meeting. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Lemoore hereby makes the following findings regarding the proposed Conditional Use Permit No. 
2024-01 based on facts detailed in the July 8, 2024, Staff Report, which is hereby incorporated 
by reference, as well as the evidence and testimony presented during the Public Hearing: 

1. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan, any applicable specific plans, and 
all applicable provisions of the Zoning Code.   

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will not, under the 
circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating characteristics), 
be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons 
residing or working in the neighborhood of such use or to the general welfare of the City. 
The site is located near other compatible commercial uses.  

3. The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density, and intensity of 
the use and related structures being proposed.  The applicant may be required by ABC to 
make physical changes to conform to their standards, if needed. 

4. It will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development regulations, or 
performance standards established for the zoning district in which it is located. The 



proposed use and related structures are compatible with other land uses, transportation 
patterns, and service facilities in the vicinity.  

5. There are no park facilities, school facilities, or existing religious land uses within 500 feet 
of the site.  

6. The public convenience or necessity would be served by the granting of the CUP and 
Type 21 ABC license. 

7. The project is Categorically Exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) per Class 1 (Existing Facilities) Section 15301 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore hereby 
approves Conditional Use Permit No. 2024-01 subject to the following conditions:  

1. The operation shall be conducted in accordance with this Conditional Use Permit. Any 
deviations from the approvals shall first require approval of an amendment to this 
Conditional Use Permit. 

2. The establishment shall obtain and maintain a valid Type 21 license from Alcoholic 
Beverage Control (ABC). A change to a license type that is deemed more intensive than 
a Type 21 license shall require an amendment to this Conditional Use Permit. 

3. The establishment shall comply with all federal and state laws regarding the sale of 
alcohol. 

4. Business hours and the sale of alcohol shall comply with ABC regulations. 

5. All subsequent uses must meet the requirements found in Section 9-5B-2 and 9-5B-4 of 
the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance related to noise, odor, and vibration, lighting and 
maintenance. 

6. The time limits and potential extensions and expiration of this Conditional Use Permit are 
established per Section 9-2A-9 of the City of Lemoore Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemoore 
held on July 8, 2024, by the following votes: 
 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAINING: 
ABSENT: 

APPROVED: 
 
 

      
Mitchell Couch, Chair 

 



ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristie Baley, Commission Secretary 














	0 Agenda 07082024 Final
	1 Virtual Attendance
	Item 4 - PC Minutes Final
	Minutes of the

	Item 5-1 Staff Report - Lennar T920 Extension 07082024
	Lemoore Planning Commission
	To:
	Steve Brandt, City Planner and 
	From:
	Kristie Baley, Management Analyst
	June 28, 2024
	Date:
	Subject:

	Item 5-2 Resolution 2024-04 Lennar Extension
	Item 5-3 Vesting TSM Lennar Tr 920
	Item 5-4 Resolution No. 2017-15 - 8-14-17
	Item 5-5 Resolution No. 2020-06 Approving Extension 06222020
	Item 5-6 Resolution No. 2021-11 Approving Extension 08092021
	Item 5-7 Resolution No. 2022-07 Approving extension
	Item 5-8 Resolution 2023-06 Approving extension
	Item 6-1 Staff Report CUP 2024-01 Day and Night Market 07082024 4872-1506-4269 1
	Lemoore Planning Commission
	To:
	Steve Brandt, City Planner and 
	From:
	Kristie Baley, Management Analyst
	June 28, 2024
	Date:
	Subject:

	Item 6-2 Resolution No. 2024-05 CUP 2024-01 07082024 4888-1374-9453 1
	Item 6-3 Resolution 2021-13 Approving  CUP 2021-03 09132021
	Item 6-4 Resolution No. 2021-06 Approving Mjr SPR 2021-03 CUP 2021-01



